TOWN OF MINNESOTT BEACH
PLANNING BOARD MEETING
February 6. 2014

MEMBERS PRESENT: Chairman Dennis Humenik, Cliff Braly, Adam Garfinkel. Mac Rubel
(left at 5:15 pm) and Richard Hughes (arrived at 4:10 pm}.

MEMBERS ABSENT: Rich Beland
OTHERS PRESENT: Commissioner Tim Fowler and Cathy Hurm — Town Manager/Clerk.
Chairman Humenik called the meeting of the Planning Board (PB) to order at 4:00 pm.

Chairman Humenik presented the agenda. Mr. Braly motion to approve. Mr. Rubel second. All
Ayes.

The minutes for January 2, 2014 were presented. Mr. Rubel motioned to accept the minutes,
second by Mr, Braly. All ayes. Motion passed.

Public Comments: None

New Business: Chairman Humenik advised the PB would be looking at the Unified
Development Ordinance (UDO) to identify those areas which could be construed as ambiguous
and present recommendations to the Board of Commissioners (BoC) for changes.

A definition/interpretation of attached versus detached was discussed to be added to Section
151.035. Discussion followed regarding various interpretations such as common footing,
common walls, common roof, common walkway and attachment via breezeway. The PB
decided to define attached as a buildings having a continuous roof, similar in architectural and
aesthetic construction. The roofs need not be on the same plane and the buildings will have open
space on 2 or more sides of each unit.

A review of Section 151.164 Multi-Family Dwelling District R-M to discuss the inclusion of
regulations regarding apartments, condominiums and townhouses was addressed. Mr. Rubel
explained some of the concerns and confusion which arises regarding R-M and Residential
Mixed Use District (R-MU) which needed to be addressed. Mr. Rubel stated that his
interpretation of R-M is that the property has one owner with multi residents and Mr. Betand has
previously stated that his interpretation is that the property could have multiple owners and
residents. Mr. Rubel said that both interpretations could be construed as correct with how the
UDO is currently written and therein lies the problem. Chairman Humenik had noted that he
believed the three types of multi familial building; apartments, condominiums and townhouses,
should all be treated the same and have their own zoning category so that when one looks at the
zoning map they will see all the zoned multi-family areas at once. Mr. Garfinkel questioned
about an understanding regarding accessory buildings. Chairman Humenik said he did not
believe that would be an issue, he for one would rather see cars in garages and accessory
building as opposed to garages being used for storage. Chairman Humenik asked for an
agreement that multi-family units should have their own zone, whether they are attached,
detached or whatever. Mr. Rubel explained that according to the UDO, townhomes are single
family attached. It was determined that multi-family is a duplex, whether the units are side by
side or over/under. Mr. Rubel stated that what is missing is single family attached. Mr. Rubel

1o0f3



TOWN OF MINNESOTT BEACH
PLANNING BOARD MEETING
February 6, 2014

raised the question as to whether the town wanted townhomes in R-M zoning with separate
ownership and if so then the definition in the UDO needed to be changed to reflect two family as
two family attached to handle the lot ownership issue. Mr. Garfinkel noted that this should be
clarified for purposes of taxation of the property and who gets taxed for the property. Mr. Ruble
recommended it could be fixed by changing two family dwelling into single family detached
dwelling, single family attached dwelling, and multi-family dwelling then you’ve covered the
aspect of lot ownership by multiple individuals. Mr. Garfinkel then raised the issue of people
being able to rent out space within their homes explaining his residence had one entrance but a
separate unit within the house complete with kitchenette, etc. The issue then regarding a
definition of single family was discussed. Mr. Rubel asked about the redundancy between single
and multiple building, you can put as many buildings on the lot as you want based upon the set-
backs and spacing that is available between the building and the dimensional requirements. Mr.
Rubel noted there is nothing within the UDO which addresses density regarding the lots. Mr.
Braly then discussed concern regarding the drain fields and septic systems within the Wayfarers
Cove and Bennett Landing properties.

Chairman Humenik pushed forward to address the issues of fences and pools. Mr. Garfinkel
noted there is nothing in the UDQ regarding pools as to whether the fence issue 1s referring to in-
ground or above ground pools. Mr. Rubel said state requirements for fences are the same for in-
ground and above-ground pools with the state requiring a 48 inch fence whereas Minnesott
Beach requires a 60 inch fence. Following discussion it was determined that with an above
ground pool in excess of two feet, whether it be permanent or temporary, access should be
denied by either a 48 inch fence or retractable/removable steps. Commissioner Fowler expressed
concern about over regulating issues regarding pools and referred to the state regulations. Other
1ssues regarding pool fences were deferred to state regulations under North Carolina Department
of Insurance (NCDOI). Chairman Humenik noted that he wanted the information to be readily
available within the UDO and individuals not having to look up referrals. Mr. Rubel noted
concerns about doing this is inasmuch as when the state changes a standard we have adopted, we
then must go back and revise our UDO. Chairman Humenik stated this would only become
necessary 1if the state became more stringent in their regulation not less stringent, the Town may
be more stringent then state regulation but not less. Mr. Braly noted that if we like how the state
regulation is written we can adopt it and write it into our regulation without having to make a
reference to the state. It was requested that a copy of the NCDOI information regarding pools be
obtained for use by the PB in addressing this issue.

The PB then went on to discuss general property fences. Chairman Humenik noted with the
variety of available type fence, some of which are considered offensive due to their appearance
or blocking wind/air flow across lots or views, there should be some kind of standard. It was
stated the completed side should face out with the construction/bracings facing into the property
owners lot. Followed was a discussion regarding fences as referred to in the covenants and the
UDO. Chairman Humenik suggested that acceptable fence types should be included within the
UDO, possibly including diagrams. Mr. Braly recommended that board members do some
research regarding fences, to include various types and prices, and bring that information to the
next meeting for discussion.

20f3



TOWN OF MINNESOTT BEACH
PLANNING BOARD MEETING
February 6, 2014

Chairman Humenik suggested that PB work on the wording of the four issues that were
addressed for presentation to the BoC.

Old Business: None
Chairman Humenik inquired if there was any other business. There being none, Mr. Humenik

moved to adjourn, second by Mr. Braly all ayes. Chairman Humenik announced the meeting
adjourned.

s Yo

"Catherine Hui'm, Town Manager/Clerk

3of3



